MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY, 21ST JULY, 2016

PRESENT:

Councillors: Charles Wright (Chair), Pippa Connor (Vice-Chair), Makbule Gunes, Kirsten Hearn and Emine Ibrahim

Co-opted Members: Yvonne Denny and Chukwuemeka Ekeowa

18. FILMING AT MEETINGS

NOTED.

19. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Ibrahim.

20. URGENT BUSINESS

There was no such business.

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

22. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS

None.

23. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2016 be approved as a correct record.

24. MINUTES OF SCRUTINY PANEL MEETINGS

RESOLVED that the minutes of the following Scrutiny Panels be noted and any recommendations contained within be approved:

Adults & Health Scrutiny Panel – 1 March 2016 Environment & Community Safety Scrutiny Panel – 1 March 2016 Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Panel – 3 March 2016 Children & Young People Scrutiny Panel – 3 March 2016

25. CORPORATE PLAN PRIORITY DASHBOARDS - Q1 UPDATE



Charlotte Pomery, Assistant Director for Commissioning, introduced the report as set out.

The following arose following discussion of the report:

- a. Financial information would be available in the next quarter, as the data required some work to convert it into a more coherent, consistent format.
- b. There was limited feedback from the public on the publication of the priority dashboards on the Council's website and further work was required to raise the awareness of the availability of this information. The Committee suggested that it could be highlighted on the front page of the website on a quarterly basis, and some 'good news' stories could be linked in with the different priority areas in order to show some tangible information.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

26. THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2015/16

Councillor Jason Arthur, Cabinet Member for Finance and Health, and Anna D'Alessandro, Deputy s151 Officer, introduced the report as set out.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. The Provisional Outturn report to Cabinet on 15 March 2016 had set out a draft Period 10 position of a net £11.1m overspend, which required an additional £3.9m drawdown from General Fund Reserves. Since then, the final 2015/16 final outturn position shows a final overspend of £6.8m, which was a c£4.3m improvement on the provisional outturn. The overspend was still significant however, and would require strong and rapid mitigating strategies to turn around the position in 2016/17.
- b. Adult Services a review was to be carried out on all care packages available, in order to ensure that the correct packages were being provided, and that the Council were receiving value for money. The review was not about taking services away, but about shifting to more appropriate packages for users. Care packages would be reviewed annually (as prescribed in the Care Act), and capabilities and capacity would need to be built in to do this.
- c. There needed to be some improvement in financial planning as the overspend was £14m higher than what had been anticipated, however a clear plan of action was being worked on to bring the deficit onto the right track. Across the Council there was a need to speed up transformation, and in order to support this, services needed to be clear about what would be realistic, but ambitious at the same time.
- d. Spending in Children's had reduced since 2014, however the service was still overspending, and this was due to the unrealistic targets set in the MTFS planning for 2014-15.
- e. There was a £7m surplus in the Collection Fund (Council Tax), this surplus highlighted the importance of pushing for growth, as these funds would be used to help pay for services in the future.
- f. The Council had a duty to meet its legal requirements, and this could not be compromised. In order to continue to meet legal requirements and provide

services it was important that the Council become more efficient in how services are delivered, and the growth agenda would help this.

The Chair thanked Councillor Arthur and Anna D'Alessandro for the update, and reminded the Committee that detailed reports on the 2016-17 budget performance would be provided at the Scrutiny Panel meetings, where Members would have the opportunity to drill down on headlines.

RESOLVED that

- i. the report and the Council's 2015/16 Final Outturn position in respect of net revenue and capital expenditure be noted;
- ii. the revenue transfers and capital carryforwards be agreed;
- iii. the principle that the carryforward of resources will only be permitted once agreed by the Chief Finance Officer, and where the expenditure is backed by an approved reserve or external funding source be noted; and
- iv. the risks and issues identified in the report in the context of the Council's on-going budget management responsibilities be noted.

27. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (BUDGET SCRUTINY PLANNING)

Councillor Jason Arthur, Cabinet Member for Finance and Health, and Anna D'Alessandro, Deputy s151 Officer, introduced the report as set out.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. The Council were looking beyond a 1 year approach to budget modelling. Public consultation would begin in October on the Medium Term Financial Strategy covering years 2018-2022, and a timetable for statutory development process and budget modelling for 16/17-17/18 were being developed.
- b. The OSC meeting on 17 October should provide the opportunity for the Committee to look at plans for engaging with the public.

RESOLVED that the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2017/2018 to 2021/2022 Planning Timetable, including the Budget Scrutiny process for 2017/18, be noted.

28. COMMUNITY SAFETY IN PARKS (SCRUTINY PROJECT)

Councillor Wright introduced the report as set out.

RESOLVED that the report be submitted to Cabinet for response.

29. HOUSING VIABILITY ASSESSMENTS (SCRUTINY PROJECT)

Martin Bradford, Scrutiny Officer, introduced the tabled report and gave a brief summary.

RESOLVED that

- i) the summary report be noted;
- ii) the recommendations set out in the summary report be agreed;
- iii) a full report shall be prepared ahead of the submission to Cabinet with updated legal and financial comments; and
- iv) any variations to recommendations shall be agreed by the Chair in consultation with the Committee ahead of submission to Cabinet.

30. SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

The Committee noted that the Chair was still to complete the foreword for the report.

RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2015/16 be approved for submission to full Council.

31. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

NOTED that the Temporary Accommodation outline scoping document was not available to be tabled at the meeting.

RESOLVED that

- i) The indicative scrutiny work programme for 2016/17 be approved;
- ii) During August 2016, in respect of the items agreed for inclusion in the 2016/17 scrutiny work programme, the Chair of OSC and Chairs of each Scrutiny Panel meet with appropriate Cabinet Members and senior officers to further clarify the work programme;
- iii) The outline scoping document for the Development Vehicle Scrutiny Project be approved, and that this projects would report back to OSC in October; and
- iv) Budget scrutiny arrangements for the budget setting process for 2017/18 be confirmed.

32. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None.

33. FUTURE MEETINGS

Noted.

CHAIR: Councillor Charles Wright

Signed by Chair

Date